
 

Copyright 2024 Trend Macrolytics LLC. All rights reserved. This document is not to be forwarded to individuals or organizations not 

authorized by Trend Macrolytics LLC to receive it. For information purposes only; not to be deemed to be recommendations for buying 

or selling specific securities or to constitute personalized investment advice. Derived from sources deemed to be reliable, but no 

warranty is made as to accuracy.  

 

 

 

Trend Macrolytics, LLC 

Donald Luskin, Chief Investment Officer  

Thomas Demas, Managing Director 

Michael Warren, Energy Strategist 

Data Insights: FOMC Minutes 
Wednesday, January 3, 2024 
 
 

December minutes   Key signaling language:   Featured    Important     Very important 

 

… The staff revised down their inflation forecast, reflecting lower-than-expected 

incoming data—including the November CPI and producer price index—and their 

judgment that inflation would be less persistent than in the previous projection. 

Measured on a four-quarter change basis, total PCE price inflation was expected to 

be somewhat below 3 percent this year, with core PCE price inflation somewhat 

above 3 percent. Inflation was projected to move lower in coming years as demand 

https://www.federalreserve.gov/monetarypolicy/fomcminutes20231213.htm


 

 

 

TrendMacro Data Insights: FOMC Minutes     2 
 

and supply in product and labor markets moved into better alignment; by 2026, total 

and core PCE price inflation were expected to be close to 2 percent. 

…In conjunction with this FOMC meeting, participants submitted their projections of 

the most likely outcomes for real GDP growth, the unemployment rate, and inflation 

for each year from 2023 through 2026 and over the longer run. … 

In their discussion of inflation, all participants observed that clear progress had been 

made in 2023 toward the Committee's 2 percent inflation objective. They remained 

concerned that elevated inflation continued to harm households, especially those 

with limited means to absorb higher prices. Participants observed that inflation 

remained above the Committee's objective and that they would need to see more 

evidence that inflation pressures were abating to become confident in a sustained 

return of inflation to 2 percent. 

In reviewing progress to date in reducing inflation, participants noted the 

improvement in both headline and core inflation and discussed the developments in 

components of these aggregate measures. They observed that progress had been 

uneven across components, with energy and core goods prices falling or changing 

little recently, but core services prices still increasing at an elevated pace. Several 

participants observed that the ongoing rebalancing of labor supply and demand would 

help reduce core services inflation. Several participants assessed that housing 

services inflation would fall further over time as the earlier deceleration in rents on 

new leases continued to pass through to broader rent measures. Participants also 

discussed the role played by various supply and demand factors in the progress on 

reducing inflation thus far. They assessed that the contribution of improved supply 

had come from supply chain normalization, boosts to labor supply due to a higher 

labor force participation rate and immigration, better productivity growth, or 

increased domestic oil production. They also noted that restrictive monetary policy 

had helped restrain growth of demand, particularly in interest-sensitive sectors such 

as business fixed investment, housing, and autos and other durable goods. Several 

participants assessed that healing in supply chains and labor supply was largely 

complete, and therefore that continued progress in reducing inflation may need to 

come mainly from further softening in product and labor demand, with restrictive 

monetary policy continuing to play a central role. A few others saw potential for 



 

 

 

TrendMacro Data Insights: FOMC Minutes     3 
 

further improvements in supply. Several participants noted that longer-term inflation 

expectations remained well anchored and that near-term inflation expectations of 

households had declined recently. 

…Participants assessed that while the labor market remained tight, it continued to 

come into better balance. Many noted that nominal wage growth had continued to 

slow broadly and that business contacts expected a further reduction in wage growth. 

A few participants observed that payroll growth had slowed substantially since the 

beginning of the year. Some participants remarked that their contacts reported larger 

applicant pools for vacancies, and some participants highlighted that the ratio of 

vacancies to unemployed workers had declined to a value only modestly above its 

level just before the pandemic. Participants viewed improvements in labor supply and 

the easing of labor demand as both having contributed to the labor market coming 

into better balance. Supply had improved because of higher labor force participation 

and immigration, with continued solid productivity growth also supporting the 

productive capacity of the economy. As evidence for the softening of the growth of 

labor demand during 2023, many participants noted the decline in job openings, and a 

few remarked on the lower quits rate. Several participants noted the risk that, if labor 

demand were to weaken substantially further, the labor market could transition 

quickly from a gradual easing to a more abrupt downshift in conditions. 

Participants generally perceived a high degree of uncertainty surrounding the 

economic outlook. As an upside risk to both inflation and economic activity, 

participants noted that the momentum of economic activity may be stronger than 

currently assessed, possibly on account of the continued balance sheet strength of 

many households. Furthermore, participants observed that, after a sharp tightening 

since the summer, financial conditions had eased over the intermeeting period. Many 

participants remarked that an easing in financial conditions beyond what is 

appropriate could make it more difficult for the Committee to reach its inflation goal. 

Participants also noted other sources of upside risks to inflation, including possible 

effects on global energy and food prices of geopolitical developments, a potential 

rebound in core goods prices following the period of supply chain improvements, or 

the effects of nearshoring and onshoring activities on labor demand and inflation. 

Downside risks to economic activity noted by participants included the possibility that 

effects of past policy tightening may be larger than expected, the risk of a marked 



 

 

 

TrendMacro Data Insights: FOMC Minutes     4 
 

weakening of household balance sheets, possible negative spillovers from lower 

growth in some foreign economies, geopolitical risks, and lingering risks of further 

tightening in bank credit. Relatedly, several participants noted that the weakness in 

gross domestic income growth relative to GDP growth over the past few quarters may 

suggest that economic momentum during that period was not as strong as indicated 

by the GDP readings. 

In their consideration of appropriate monetary policy actions at this meeting, 

participants noted that recent indicators suggested that growth of economic activity 

had slowed from its strong pace in the third quarter. Job gains had moderated since 

earlier in the year but remained strong, the unemployment rate had remained low, 

and there were continuing signs that supply and demand in the labor market were 

coming into better balance. Inflation had eased over the past year but remained 

elevated. Participants also noted that tighter financial and credit conditions facing 

households and businesses would likely weigh on economic activity, hiring, and 

inflation, although the extent of these effects remained uncertain. Participants 

continued to be resolute in their commitment to bring inflation down to the 

Committee's 2 percent objective… 

In discussing the policy outlook, participants viewed the policy rate as likely at or 

near its peak for this tightening cycle, though they noted that the actual policy path 

will depend on how the economy evolves. Participants pointed to the decline in 

inflation seen during 2023, noting the recent shift down in six-month inflation 

readings in particular, and to growing signs of demand and supply coming into better 

balance in product and labor markets as informing that view. Several participants 

remarked that the Committee's past policy actions were having their intended effect 

of helping to slow the growth of aggregate demand and cool labor market conditions. 

They judged that, in combination with improvements in the supply situation, these 

developments were helping to bring inflation back to 2 percent over time. Most 

participants noted that, as indicated in their submissions to the SEP, they expected 

the Committee's restrictive policy stance to continue to soften household and 

business spending, helping to promote further reductions in inflation over the next 

few years. 



 

 

 

TrendMacro Data Insights: FOMC Minutes     5 
 

In their submitted projections, almost all participants indicated that, reflecting the 

improvements in their inflation outlooks, their baseline projections implied that a 

lower target range for the federal funds rate would be appropriate by the end of 

2024. Participants also noted, however, that their outlooks were associated with an 

unusually elevated degree of uncertainty and that it was possible that the economy 

could evolve in a manner that would make further increases in the target range 

appropriate. Several also observed that circumstances might warrant keeping the 

target range at its current value for longer than they currently anticipated. 

Participants generally stressed the importance of maintaining a careful and data-

dependent approach to making monetary policy decisions and reaffirmed that it 

would be appropriate for policy to remain at a restrictive stance for some time until 

inflation was clearly moving down sustainably toward the Committee's objective. 

Participants discussed several risk-management considerations that could bear on 

future policy decisions. Participants saw upside risks to inflation as having diminished 

but noted that inflation was still well above the Committee's longer-run goal and that 

a risk remained that progress toward price stability would stall. A number of 

participants highlighted the uncertainty associated with how long a restrictive 

monetary policy stance would need to be maintained, and pointed to the downside 

risks to the economy that would be associated with an overly restrictive stance. A 

few suggested that the Committee potentially could face a tradeoff between its dual-

mandate goals in the period ahead. 

Participants observed that the continuing process of reducing the size of the Federal 

Reserve's balance sheet was an important part of the Committee's overall approach 

to achieving its macroeconomic objectives and that balance sheet runoff had so far 

proceeded smoothly. Several participants noted that, amid the ongoing balance sheet 

normalization, there had been a further decline over the intermeeting period in use of 

the ON RRP facility and that this reduced usage largely reflected portfolio shifts by 

money market mutual funds toward higher-yielding investments, including Treasury 

bills and private-market repo. Several participants remarked that the Committee's 

balance sheet plans indicated that it would slow and then stop the decline in the size 

of the balance sheet when reserve balances are somewhat above the level judged 

consistent with ample reserves. These participants suggested that it would be 

appropriate for the Committee to begin to discuss the technical factors that would 



 

 

 

TrendMacro Data Insights: FOMC Minutes     6 
 

guide a decision to slow the pace of runoff well before such a decision was reached 

in order to provide appropriate advance notice to the public. 

Source: Federal Reserve Board 


